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THE WHITE HOUSE

WASHINGTON

June 11, 1975

MEMORANDUM FOR: JIM CANNON Q '\)

FROM: PAM NEEDHAM

SUBJECT: CONSUMER PROTECTION LEGISLATION

On June 4 Congressmen Brooks, Rosenthal and Horton
introduced legislation to create an Agency for Consumer

Protection, H.R. 7575.

As Brooks pointed out in submitting the bill, it is
similar to the one passed by the House last year, 293-94.

My brief reading of it indicates H.R. 7575 is virtually
the same as S. 200. Some differences are seen in the
following provisions:

- Term of the Administrator

H.R. 7575 does not limit the President's power to
appoint or remove the Administrator.

-~ Budget

There does not appear to be a requirement in H.R. 7575
for simultaneous budget submissions to the Congress.

- Dual Prosecution

H.R. 7575 does seem to put a partial limit on the
intervention authority of the ACP in the area of
agency adjudications of alleged violations of law.
In such proceedings the ACP would be held to a role
of amicus curiae rather than that of a "prosecutor”
as in S. 200.
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- Appropriations

Rather than setting forth specific appropriation
amounts for the Agency as S. 200 does, H.R. 7575
provides only for "such sums."

Clearly what we need is a complete legal analysis of

H.R. 7575 comparable to the one on 5. 200. OMB has told

me today that they are working on it and should have it
available early next week. At the same time, they will

do an updated summary of S. 200 to reflect floor amendments.
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IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

JuxE 4,1975

Brooxs (for himself, Mr. RosextmAL, and Mr. Horron) introduced the
following bill; which was referred to the Committee on Government
Operations

A BILL

establish an Ageney for Comsumer Protection in order to
secure. within the Federal Government effective protection
and representation. of the interests of consumers, and for
other purposes.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Represenia-
tives of the Unifed States of America in Congress assembled,
That this Act may be cited as the “Consumer Protection Act
of 1975,

STATEMENT OF FINDINGS

Sec. 2. The Congress finds that the interests of con-

sumers are inadequately represented and protected within

the Federal Government; and that vigorous representation

 §
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and protection of the interests of consumers are essential to
the fair and efficient functioning of a free market economy.
| ESTABLISHMENT
SEc. 3. (a) There is hereby established as an inde-
pendent agency within the executive branch of the Govern-
ment an Agency for Consumer Protection. The Agency shall

be headed byr. an Administrator who shall be appointed by

the President, by and with the advice and consent of the -

Senate. The Administrator shall be a person who by reason
of traiﬁing, ‘experience, and attainments 'is exceptionally
qualified to represent the interests of consumers. There shall
be in the Agencyﬂa)D-eputy Adminisfrator who shall be
appointed by the Pfesfdent,' by and with the advice and
consentl. of the Senate. The Deputy Administrator shall per-
form such functions, .powers, and duties as may be pre-
seribed from time to time jby the Adxﬁinis;trator and shall

act for, and exercise the powers of, the Administrator dﬁring

‘the absence or disability of, or in the event of a vacaney in

the office of, the Administrator.
(b) No elhployee of the Agency while serving in such

position may engage in any business, vocation, or other em-

ployment or have other interests which are inconsistent with -

his official responsibilities.
POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE ADMINISTRATOR
Sec. 4. (a) The Administrator shall be responsible

for the exercise of the powers and the discharge of the duties

A
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of the Agency, and shall have the authority to direct and
supervise all personnel and activities thereof.

(b) In addition to any other authority conferred upon
him by this Aect, the Administrator is authorized, in carrying
out his funetions under this Act, to—

(1) subject to the civil service and classiﬁcatibn
laws, select, appoint, employ, and fix the compensation
of such officers and employees as are necessary to carry
out the provisions of this Act and to prescribe their
aﬁthority and duties;

(2) employ experts and consultants in accordance
with section 3109 of title 5, United States Code, and
compensate individuals so employed for each day (in-
cluding 1!,1'a-ve1time) at rates not in excess of the maxi-
mum rate of pay for grade GS-18 as provided in section
5332 of title 5, United States Code, and while such
experts and consultants are so serving away from their
homes or regular place of business, pay such employees
travel exi)enses and per diem in lieu of subsistence
at rates authorized by section 5703 of title 5, United
States Code, for persons in (Gtovernment service em-
ployved intermittently;

(3) appoint advisory committees composed of such
private citizens and officials of the Federal, State, and

Jlocal governments as he deems desirable to advise him
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4 with respect to his functions under this Act, and pay
such members (other than those regularly employed by

the Federal (tovernment) while attending meetings of

L - B

such committees or otherwise serving at the request of
the Administrator compensation and travel expenses at
the rate provided for in paragraph (2) of this subsection

" with respeet te-experts and consultants;

(4) premulgate such rules as may be necessary to

®W W a4 o o

carry: out the funetions vested in him or in the Agency,
10 ©  and delegate authority for the performanee of any func-
13 thon' to amy offieer or employee under his direction and

i+

12 D¢ gupervision; o b ¢ ol
13 b sy 5y tilize, iwith their consent, the serviees, person-
1470 2indh 5 facilities of other Federal agencies and of State

5129 “iand" private agentiés and instrumentalities;

467 117 bi(6) enter intorand perform such eomtracts, leases,

17 U igodpéTative agreements, or other transactions as may be
18 ' 'necessary in the  conduct of the work of the Agency and
19 on $uch terms as the Administrator may deem appropri-
20 ate, with any agency or instrumentality of the United
21 tates, or with any State, territory, or possession, or any
22 political subdivision thereof, or with any public or pri-
23 vate person, firm, association, corporation, or institution;

24 (7) accept voluntary and uncompensated services,
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notwithstanding the provisions of section 3679 (b) of

the Revised Statutes (31 U.S.C. 665 (b) ) ;

(8) adopt an official seal, which shall be judicially .

noticed ; and
(9) encourage the development of informal dispute
settlement procedures invelving consumers.

(¢) Upon request made by the Administrator, each
Tederal agency is authorized and directed to make its sery-
ices, personnel, and facilities available to the greatest prac-
ticable extent within its capability to the Agency in the per-
formance of its functions. . e

(d) The Administrator shall transmit to the Congress
and the President in January of each year a report which
shall include a comprehensive statement of the actmtles
and accomplishments of the Agency during the precedmg

calendar year including a summary of consumer complamts

received and actions taken thereon and such recommenda—

tions for additional legislation as he may detemune to be
necessary or desirable to protect thé interests of ébnsunle;s;
within the United States. Each such report shall include a
summary and evaluation of selected major consumer prb-

grams of each Federal agency, including, but not limited to,

comment with respect to the effectiveness and efficiency of
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such programs as well as deficiencies noted in the coordina-

tion, administration, or enforcement of such programs.
FUNCTIONS OF THE AGENCY
SEc. 5. (a) The Agency shall, in the performance of
its functions, advise the Congress and the President as to
matters affecting the interests of consumers; and protect
and promote the interests of the people of the United States
as consumers of goods and services made available to them

through the trade and commerce of the United States.

10

11
12
13

this Aet; Drekae

(b) The functions of the- Agency shall be to— - -
(1) represent the interests of consumers before
Tederal agencies and courts to the extent authorized by

(2) encourage and support research,— 'st‘ildies;_“aﬁ(l.
festing leading to a better uhdefstaﬁdiﬂg of consumer
products and improved produc&t, services, and consumer
information, to the extent authorized in section 9 of this
Act; : |
' (3) submit recommendations annually to the Con-
gress and the President on measures to improve the
operation of the Federal Government in the protection
and promotion of the interests of consumers;

(4) publish and distribute material developed pur-

suant to carrying out its responsibilities under this Act
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which will inform consumers of matters of interest to
* them, to the extent authorized in section 8 of this Act;

(5) conduct conferences, surveys, and investiga-
tions, including economie surveys, concerning the needs,
interests, and problems of conswmers which are not
duplicative in significant degree of similar activities
conducted by other Federdl agencies;

(6) cooperate with State and local governments
and private enterprise in the promotion and protection

of the interests of consamers; and

(7) keep the appropriate committees of Congress.

fully and currently informed of all its activities, except
 that this paragraph is not authority to withhold informa-
tion r‘eql\\xes;ted by individual Members of Congress.

REPRESENTATION OF CONSUMERS

Sec. 6. {a) Whenever the Administrator determines-

that the result of any Federal agency proceeding or activity
may substantially affect an interest of consumers, he may as
of right intervene as a party or otherwise participate for
the purpose of representing the interests of consumers, as
provided in paragraph (1) or (2) of this subsection. In any
proceeding, the Administrator shall refrain from intervening
as a party, unless he determines that such intervention is

necessary to represent adequately the interest of consumers.
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The -Administrater shall comply with Federal agency statutes
and rules of procedure of general applicability governing the
tfiming of intervention or participation in such proceeding or
activity and, upon intervening or participating therein, shall
comply with Federal agency statutes and rules of procedure
of general applicability g:overning the eonduct thereof. The
intervention or participation of the Administrater in any
Federal agency proceeding or activity shall not affect the
obligation of the Federal agency conducting such proceedixig'
or activity to assure procedural fairness to all ‘participants.”
(1) Except as provided in subsection (c), the Ad-- s
ministrator may intérvene a8 o party or otherwise par--
ticipate in any Federal agency proceeding which is sub-"
ject to section 553, 554, 556, or 557 of title 5, United:
States Code, or to any other statute er regulation val.z‘:’:- 14
thorizing a hearing, or which is conducted on the record-
after opportunity for an ageney hearing.
(2) Except as provided in subseetion {¢), in any"
Federal agency proceeding not covered by paragraph
(1), or any other Federal agency activity, the Adminis-:
trator may participate or communicate in any manner
that any person may participate or communicate under
Federal agency statutes, rules, or practices. The Federal
agency shall give consideration to the written or oral

submission of the Administrator. Such submission shall
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be presented in an orderly manner and without causing

undue delay.

(b) At such time as the Administrator determines to
intervene or participate in a Federal agency proceeding
under subsection (a) (1) of this section, he shall issue
publicly a written statement setting forth his findings under
subsection (a), stating concisely the specific interests of
consumers to he protected, Upon intervening or participat-
ing he shall file a copy of his statement in the proceeding.

{c) In— |

(1) any Federal agency proceeding ,se,ekil-lg pri-
marily to impose a fine or forfeiture which the
agency may _impoée under its. own auﬂlgrity for an
alleged violation of a statute of the United States or
of a l'ulé, order, or decree promulgated theréundei‘, or

(2) any action in any court of the United States
to which the United States or any Federal agency is

a party,
and which in the opinion of the Administrator may substan-
tially affect the interests of consumers, the Administrator
upon his own motion, or upen written request made by the
officer or employee who is charged with the duty of present-
ing the case for the United States or the Federal agency in
the proceeding or action, may transmit to such officer or

emplovee all evidence and information in the possession of

H.R.7575—2
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the Administrator relevant to the proceeding or action and
may, in the discretion of the Federal agency or court, appear
as amicus curine and present written or oral argument to
such ageney or court.

(d) To the extent that any person, if aggrieved, would
have a right of judicial review by law, the Administrator
may institute, or intervene as a party, in a proceeding in a
court of the United Sta-tes‘ involving judicial review of any

Federal agency action which the Administrator determines

“substantially affects the interests of consumers, except that

where the Administrator did not intervene or participate n
the Federal agency proceeding or activity involved, the court
shall deterrnine whether the Administrator’s institution. of
the judicial proceeding would be necesszi.ry to the intel'e;ts
of justice. Before instituting a proceeding to obtain judicial
review in a case where the Administrat(.')t“ did not intéli—
vene or participate in the Federal agency pl'oceeding or
activity, the Administrator shall petition the Federal agen(;y
for rehearing or reconsideration of its action if the Fed-

eral agency statutes or rules specifically authorize rehear-

ing or reconsideration. The petition shall be filed within -

sixty days after the Federal agency action or within such
longer time as may be allowed by Federal agency proce-

dures. If the Federal agency does not act finally upon such

petition within sixty days after filing thereof, or within any
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shorter time, less five days, as may be provided by law for
the initiation of judicial review, the Administrator may in-
stitute a proceeding for judicial review immediately. The
participation of the Administrator-in a proceeding for judi-
cial review of a Federal agency action shall not alter -or
affect the scope of review otherwise applicable to such agency
action. _

(e) When the Administrator determines it to be in the
interests of consumers, he may request the Federal agency
concerned to initiate such proceeding or to take such other
action as may be authorized by law with respect to such
agency. If the Federal agency fails to take the action re-
quested, it shall promi)tly notify the Agency of the reasons
for its faihu'L and such notification shall be a matter of
public record. To the extent that any person, if aggrieved,
would have a right of judicial review by law, the Agency
may institute a proceeding in a court of the United States
to secure review of the action of a Federal agency or its
refusal to act.

(f) Appearances by the Agency under this section shall
be in its own name and shall be made by qualified represent-
atives designated by the Administrator.

(g) In any Federal agency proceeding to which the
Agency is a party, the Agency is authorized to request

the Tederal ageney to issue, and the Federal agency shall,




(1 o W] bt

[}

© 00 =N D

10
h i |
12
13

14

15
16
17
18
i9
20
21
22
23
24
25

12
on a statement or showing (if such statement or showing
is required by the Federal agency’s rules of procedure) of
general relevance and reasonable scope of the evidence
sought, issue such orders, as are authorized hy the IFederal
agency’s statntory powers, for the copying of documents,
papers, and records, summoning of wiinesses, production of
books and papers, and submission of information in writing.

(h) The Agency is not authorized to intervene in pro-

.ceedings or actions before State or local agencies and courts.

(i) Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit
the Ageney from communicating with Federal, State, -or
local agencies at times and in manners not inconsistent with
law or agency rules. ¢

- CONSUMER COMPLAINTS

SEc. 7. (a) The Agency shall receive, evaluate, de-
welop, act on, and transmit complaints to the appropriate
Federal or non-Federal entities concerning actions or pr;ic—
tices which may be detrimental to the interests of consnmers.

{b) Whenever the Agency receives from any source, or

develops on its own initiative, any complaint or other infor-

mation affecting the interests of consumers and disclosing a /-

probable violation of—
(1) alaw of the United States,

(2) a rule or order of a Federal ageney or officer,

or

™
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(3) a judgment, decree, or order of any court of the

United States involving a matter of Federal law,
it shall take such action within its authority as may be
desirable, including the proposal of legislation, or shall
promptly transmit such complaint or other information to
the Federal agency or officer charged with the duty of
enforcing such law, rule, order, judgment, or decree, for
appropriate action.

(¢) The Agency shall ascertain the nature and extent of
action‘ taken with regard to respective complaints and other
information transmitted under subsection (b) of this section.

(d) The Agency shall promptly notify producers, dis-
tributors, retailers or suppliers of goods and services: of all
complaints. of any: significance concerning them received or
developed under this section. 1 2

" (e) The Agency shall maintain a public document room
containing an up-to-date listing of all signed consumer com-
plaints of any significance for public inspection and copymg
which the Ag;ency has received, arranged in meaningful and
uscful categories, together with annotations of actions taken
by it. Complaints shall be listed and made available for pub-
lic inspection and copying only if—

(1) the complainant’s identity is protected when he
has requested confidentiality ;

(2) the party complained against has had sixty
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days to comment on such complaint and such comment,
when received, is displayed together with the complaint;
and
(3) the entity to which the complaint has been re-
ferred has had sixty days to notify the Agency what
action, if any, it intends to take with respect to the
complaint.
CONSUMER INFORMATION AND SERVICES
- SEec. 8. (a) The -Agency shall develop on its own
initiative, and, subject to the other provisions of this Aect,
gather from other Federal agencies and.non-Federal sources;
and disseminate to the public in such manner, at such times,
and in such form as it determines to be most effective,-infor~
mation, stafistics, and other data concerning—
(1) the functions and duties of- the Agency;
v {2) eonsumer products-and servieces; |
(3) problems encountered by consumers generally,
including annual reports on interest rates and commereial
and trade practices which adversely affect consumers;
and
(4) notices of Federal hearings, proposed and final
rules and orders, ahd other pertinent activities of Fed-
eral agencies that affect consumers.
(b) All T'ederal agencies which, in the judgment of the

Administrator, possess information which would be useful
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to consuniers are authorized and directed to cooperate with
the Agency in making such information available to the

public.

TESTING AND RESEARCIL

SEc. 9. (a) The Agency shall, in the exercise of its

functions—

(1) encourage and support through both public and
private entities the development and application of
methods and techniques for testing materials, mecha-
n'isms, components, structures, and Pprocesses used in
consumer products and for improving consumer services;

(2) make recommendations to other Federal agen-
cies with respect to research, studies, analyses, and
other information within their authority Whiq]} would
be useful and beneficial to consumers; and -

(3) investigate and report to Congress on the
desirability and feasibility of establishing a National
Consumer Information Foundation which would admin-
ister a \:oluntary, self-supporting, information tag pro-
gram (similar to the “Tel-Tag” program of Great
Britain) under which any manufacturer of a nonperish-
able consumer product to be sold at retail could be
anthorized to attach to each copy of such product a tag,

standard in form, containing information, based on uni-
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form standards relating to the performance, safety, dur-

ability, and care of the product.

(b) All Federal agencies which, in the judgment of the
Administrator, possess testing facilities and staff relating to
the performance of consumer products and services, are
authorized and directed .to perform promptly, to the greatest
practicable extent within their capability, such tests as the

Administrator may request in the exercise of his functions

- under section 6 of this Act, regarding products, services, or

any matter affecting the interests of consumers. Such tests
shall, to the extent possible, be condueted in :ﬁécordailéé
with generally accepted methodologies’ and """procedu_re's'; and
in every case when test results are published, the ol
ologies and procedures used shall’be available along with
the test results. The results of such tests may be used (;1‘ :
published only in proeeedigs i which ‘the' Agency is pm-‘
ticipating or has intervened pursuant to section 6. In pro-
viding facilities and staff upon request made in writing by
the Administrator, Federal agencies—
(1) may perform functions under this section with-
out regard to section 3648 of the Revised Statutes (31 2
U.8.C. 529) ;
(2) may request any other Federal agency to sup-
ply such statistics, data, progress reports, and other in-

formation as the Administrator deems necessary to carry
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out his functions under this section and any such other
agency is authorized and directed to cooperate to the
extent permitted by law by furnishing such materials;
and
(3) may, to the extent necessary and authorized,
acquire or establish additional facilities and purchase
additional equipment for the purpose of carrying out
the purposes of this section.
~ (c) Neither a Federal agency engaged in testing prod-
ucts under this Act nor the Administrator shall declare one
product to be better; or a better buy, than any other product;
however, the provisions of this subsection shall not prohibit
the use or ?iiblic'ation of test data as provided in subsection
(b). &
INFORMATION GATHERING
SEc. 10. (a) (1) To the extent required to protect the
health or safety of consumers, or to discover consumer fraud
or substantial economic injury to consumers, the Adminis-
trator is authorized to issue written interrogatories or re-
quests for reports and other related information to any person
engaged in a trade, business, or industry which substantially
affects interstate commerce. Such interrogatories or requests
shall set forth with particularity the consumer interest sought
to be protected, and the purposes for which the information

ix sought.

Cog e
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(2) Nothing in this subsection shall be construed to
authorize the inspection or copying of documents, papers,
books, or records, or to compel the attendance of any person,
or shall require the disclosure of information which would
violate any relationship privileged according to law.
(3) The Administrator shall not exercise the authority

under paragraph (1) of this subsection if the information

sought—
(A) is available as a matter of publw record;
/(B) can be obtained from another Federal ‘zgggnéy
. pursuant to subsection (b) of this section; O .. kE

(C). is for use in connection with his interyention

in any. pending Federal agency proceeding against the
be . el o B : VI
person to whom the interrogatories are addresﬁgg. LT

(4) In the event of noncqmplidnce with any inter:

. Togatories jor requests submitted-to any person by the Ad-

ministrator pursuant to paragraph (1), any district court
of the United States within the jurisdiction of which such
person is found, or has his principal place of business, shall

issue an order, on conditions and with such apportionment of

costs as it decmns just, requiring compliance with a valid, |

order of the Administrator. The district court of the United
States shall issue such an order upon petition by the Admin-
istrator or on a motion to quash, and upon the Administra-

tor’s carrving the burden of proving in court that such order




o

L

i

o »w === o

19

is for information that may substantially affect the health or
safety of consumers or may be necessary in the discovery
of consumer frand or substantial economic injury to con-
sumers, and is relevant to the purposes for which the in-
formation is sought, unless the person to whom the inter-
rogatory or request is addressed shows that answering such
interrogatory or request will be unnecessarily or excessively
burdensome.

. (b) Upon written request by the Administrator, cach
Federal agency is anthorized and directed to furnish or allow
access to all documents, papers, and records in its posses-
sion which the Administrator deems necessary for the per-

;f‘?rmance 'of his functions and to furnish at cost copies of
' \

 specified documents, papers, and records. Notwitstanding

this subsection, a Federal agency may deny the Adminis-
trator access to and copies of—

(1) information classified in the interest of national
defense, or national security by an individual authorized
to classify such information under applicable Executive
order or statutes and restricted data whose dissemination
is controlled pursuant to the Atomic Energy Act (42
U.8.C. 2011 et seq.) ;

(2) policy recommendations by Federal agency
personnel intended for internal agency use only;

(3) information concerning routine executive and
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administrative funetions which is not otherwise a matter
of publie record;

(4) personnel and medical filés and similar files the
disclosure of which weuld constitute a clearly unwar-
ranted invasion of personal privacy;

{5) information which such Federal agency is ex-
pressly prohibited by law from  disclosing to another
Federal agency; and H R

(6) trade secrets and commercial:or financial in-
formation’ described!in ' seetioni' 552 (b} (4) roftitle 5
United: States @odle<otiig Aln il [ 6d 2z ’

(A’ “obtaimed prior'to’ the! effective ‘dite’ of il
Act by & Federal gency; 'if the agency had agreed -
it trdatoaid Yok troated: such nforrhationas pr1v1— %
" leged *or. eonfidential and''states in:‘writing'to the 4

Administrator that; takitig’ into ’zfcéo&ﬁtﬁ thé hature

of ‘the’ dssurances” given, the character of the in-

formation requested, and the purpose;’ as stated by
the Administrator, for which access is ‘sought, to
permit such access would constitate a Dreach of
faith by the agency; or

(B) obtained subsequent to the effective date
of this Act by a Federal agency, if the agency has
agreed in writing as a condition of receipt to treat

such information as privileged or confidential, on
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the. basis. of its determination set forth in writing

that. such information was not obtainable without

such an. agreement and that failure to obtain such

information would seriously impair performance
of the ageney’s function.
Before granting the Administrator access to trade secrets
and commercial or financial information described in
section 532 (h) (4) of title 5, Uﬁited States Code, the agency
shall notify the--person who provided such information of its
intention to do s6 and the reasons therefor, and shall afford

him a reasonable--epporfunity to- comment or seek injune-

-tive relief., Where .access to -information is denied to the

. Administrator ‘hy a Federal agency pursuant to-this subec-

tion, the head of the agency and the .Administrator shall

- seek to find a means of providing the information in such

other form, or. under such conditions, as .“:ill -meet the
agency’s objections: The Administrator may file a complail_ii
in court to enforce its rights under this subsection in the
same manner and subject to the same conditions as a com-
plainaut under section 552 (a) (3) of title 5, United States
Code.

(¢) Consistent with the provisions of section 7213
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (26 U.S.C. 7213),
nothing in this Act shall he construed as providing for or

authorizing any Federal agency to divulge or to make
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known in any manner whatever to the Administrator, from
an income tax return, the amount or source of income,
profits, losses, expenditures, or any particular thereof, or
to permit any Federal income tax return filed pursuant to
the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, or
copy thereof or any book containing any abstracts or par-
ticulars thereof to be scen or examined by the Administrator,
except as provided by law.

LIMITATIONS ON DISCLOSURES
Sec. 11. (a) The Agency shall not disclose to the
public or to any State or local agency—

(1) any information (other than complaints pub-
lished pursuant to section 7 of this Act) in a form
which would reveal trade secrets and commercial or
financial information as described in section 552 (b) (4)
of title 5, United States Code, obtained from a person
and privileged or confidential; or |

(2) any information which was received solely
from a Federal agency when such agency has notified
the Agency that the information is within the exeeptions
stated in section 552 (b) of title 5, United States Code,
and the Federal agency has determined that the infor-
mation should not be made available to the public;
except that if such Federal agency has specified that

such information may be disclosed in a partieular form
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or manner, the Agency may disclose such information in
‘such form or manner.

(b) No authority conferred by this Act shall be deemed
to require any Federal agency to release to any.instrumen-
tality, created by or under this Aect, any information the
disclosure of which is prohibited by law.

(c) In the release of mformation pursuant to the author-
ity conferred in any section of this Act, except information
reléased through ‘the presentation of evidence in a Federal
agency or court proceeding puréuanf to section 6, the fol-
lowing additional provisions shall govern:

(1) The ‘Administrator, in réleasing information

: cthér‘{ﬁﬁ’g‘ consumer produects andl services, shall deter-
miné that (A) ‘such information, so far as practicable, is
accurate, and (B) ne part of such information is pro-

' ‘hibited from-disclosuré by law. The Administrator shall
comply with any notice by a Federal agency pursnant
to section 11 (a) (2) that the information should not be
made available to the public or should be disclosed only

Cina particular form or manner.

(2) In the dissemination of any test results or
other information which directly or indirectly disclose
product names, it shall be made elear that (A) net all
products of a competitive nature have been tested, if

such is the case, and (B) there is no intent or purpose
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to rate products tested over those not tested or to imply
that those tested are superior or preferable in quality
over those not tested.

(3) Notice of all changes or additional information
which would affect the fairness of information previ-
onsly disseminated to the public shall he promptly dis-
seminated in a similar manner.

PROCEDURAL FAIRNESS
Sec. 12. In exercising the powers conferred in section 5
(b) (4) and section 7, the Agency shall act pursuant to
rules issued, after notice and opportunity for comment by
interested persons in accordance with the requirements of
section 553 of title 5, United States Code, so as to assure
fairness to all affected parties, and provide interested persons
with a reasonable opportunity to comment on the proposed
release of product test data, containing product names, prior
to such release.
PROTECTION OF TIIE CONSUMER INTEREST IN ‘
ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDINGS
Sec. 13. Every T'ederal agency in considering any
Federal agency action which may substantially affect the
interests of consumers including, but not limited to, the is-
suance or adoption of rules, regulations, guidelines, orders,
standards, or formal policy decisions, shall—

(1) notify the Agency at such time as notice of
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the action is given to the public, or at such times and
in such manner as may be fixed by agreement between
the Administrator and each agency with respect to the
consideration of specific acﬁons, or v;rhen notification
of a specific action or proceeding is requested in writing
by the Agency; and |
(2) consistent with its statutory responsibilities,
take sueh action with due consideration to the interest
_of eonsumers.
In taking any aetion under paragraph (2), upon request of
the Agency or in those cases where a public announcement
would normally be made, the Federal agency concerned
shall indieate coneisely in a public announcement ‘of ‘such
action the consideration given to the interests of consumers;
This section shall be enforeeable in a court of the United

>~

States only upon petition of the Ageney. -
SAVING PROVISIONS - 3
Sec. 14. (a) Nothing contained in this Act shall be
construed to alter, modify, or impair the statutory respon<
sibility and authority contained in section 201 (a) (4) of
the Federal Property and Administrative Services Act of.
1949, as amended (40 U.S.C. 481 (a) (4) ), or of any pro-

vicion of the antitrust laws, or of any Act providing for the

regulation of the trade or commerce of the United States, or-
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to prevent or impair the administration or enforcement of
any such provision of law.

(h) Nothing contained in this Act shall be construed as
relieving any Federal agency of any authority or respon-
sibility to proteet and promote the interests of the consumer.

TRANSFER OF CONSUMER PRODUCT INFORMATION

. COORDINATING CENTER

Sec. 15. (a) Al officers, employees, assets, liabilities,
contracts, property, and records as are determined by the
Director of the Office of Management and Budget to he em=

ployed, held, or used primarily in connection with the func-

tions of the Consumer Product Information Coordinating -

Center in the General Services Administration are trans-

ferred to the Agency and all functions of the Administrator
of General Services administered throﬁgh the Consumer
Product Information Coordinating Center are transferred
to the Agency.

(b) (1) Except as provided in paragraph (2) of this
subsection, personnel engaged in functions transferred under
this section shall be transferred in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations relating to transfer of fanetions.

(2) The transfer of personnel pursuant to this section
shéH be without reduction in classification or compensation

for one year after such transfer.
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DEFINITIONS o

SEC. 16. As used in this Aet—

(1) The term “Agency” means the Agency for Con-
smer Protection.

(2) The words “agency”, “agency action”, “party”,
“person”, “rulemaking”, “adjudication”, and “agency pro-
ceeding”” shall have the same meaning as set forth in section
551 of title 5, United States Code.

(3) The term “consumer” wmeans any person who
uses for personal, family, or household purposes, goods and

services offered or furnished for a consideration.

(4) The term “interests of consumers” means dny

concerns of consumers involving the cost, quality, purity,

safety, durability, performance, effectiveness, dependability,
and availability and adequacy of choice of goods and serv-
ices offered or furnished to consumers; and the adequac}?
and accuracy of information relating to consumer goods and
services (including labeling, packaging, and advertising of
contents, qualities, and terms of sale).

(5) The term “State’” includes any State or possession
of the United States, the Distriet of Columbia, the Com-
monwealth of Puerto Rico, the Virgin Islands, Canal Zone,

Guam, American Samoa, and the Trust Territories of the

Pacific Islands.

g
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CONFORMING AMENDMENT

1
2 Sec. 17. (a) Section 5314 of title 5, United States

3 Code, is amended by adding at the end thereof the following:
4 “(62) Administratér, Ageney for Consumer Pro-
5 tection.”.

6 (b) Section 5315 of such title is amended by adding
7 at the end thereof the following:

8 “(99) Deputy Administrator, Agency for Con-
9 sumer Proteetion.”.

10 EXEMPTIONS

11 Sec. 18. This Act shall not apply to the Central In-
12 > telligence Agency, the. Federal Bureau of Investigation, or
13 the National Security Agency, or the national security or

14 - intelligence functions (including related procurement) of

et
Ot

the Departments of State and Defense (including the Depart-

ek
(o]

ments of the Army, Navy, and Air Force) and the Energy.
17 Research and Development Administration, or to a labor dis-

18 pute within the meaning of section 13 of the Act entitled

19 “An Act to amend the Judicial Code and to define and limit 0

20 the jurisdiction of courts sitting in equity, and for other pur- '

21 poses”, approved March 23, 1932 (29 U.8.C. 113) or of sec-

B2
N}

tion 2 of the Labor Management Relations Aet (29 U.S.C.
3 152), or to a labor agreement within the meaning of section
24 201 of the Tabor Management Relations Act, 1947 (29

25 U.L8.C.171).
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SEX DISCRIMINATION

Sec. 19. No person shall on the ground of sex be ex-
cluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
subjected to discrimination under any program or aetivity
carried on or receiving Federal assistance under this Aeét.
This provision will be enforced through agency provisions
and rules similar to those already established, with respect
to racial and other disecrimination, under title- VI of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964. However, this remedy is ot
exclusive and will not. prejudice or cut, off any other legal
remedies available to a diseriminatee. oy KR

APPROPRIATIONS

SEc. 20. There are hereby authorized to be appropri-
ated to carry out the provisions of this Act such sums as
may be required for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1976,
for the transitional period July 1, 1976, through September
30, 1976, for the fiscal year ending September 30, 1977,
and for the fiscal year ending September 30, 1978.

EFFECTIVE DATE

Sec. 21. (a) This Act shall take effect ninety calendar
days following the date on which this Act is approved, or
on such earlier date as the President shall prescribe and
publish in the Federal Register.

(b) Any of the officers provided for in this Act may

(notwithstanding subsection (a)) be appointed in the man-
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ner provided for in this Aect at any time after the date of the
enactment of this Act. Such officers shall be compensated
from the date they first take office at the rates provided for
in this Aect.
SEPARABILITY

Sre. 22. If any provision of this Act is declared un-
constitutional or the applicability thereof to any person or
circumstance is held invalid, the constitutionality and ef-
fectiveness of the remainder of this Act and the applicability

thereof to any persons and circumstances shall not be affected

thereby.

vy
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" HLR. 7575
A BILL

To establish an Agency for Consumer Protec-
tion in order to securc within the Federal
Government effective protection and repre-
sentation of the interests of consumers, and
for other purposes.

By Mr. Brooxs, Mr. RosexrtHAL, and
Mr. Horrow

June 4, 1975
Referred to the Committee on Government Operations
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to hammer out the ezxact language of this legislatlon.

Mrx. Bhart. %hank you, Mr. Chaiyxman.

Mrx. Brooks. Our next witness is a very distinguished and
‘able public¢ servant, Mr. O'Neill.

I see we have a copy ot your statement. We have always
made it a practice, not always a wite prectice, to give people
an opportunity to summarize their statements. If thoy wanted
to put their complete statement in the record we will accept
it in that fashion. l

Then if you want to sunmarize it we cerxtainly would under
stand.

We are delighted to have you, Mr, O0'Neill. You may
proceed.

STATEMENT OF ME. PAUL H. O'NEILL, DEPUTY DIRECIOR, OFFICE GF
MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET

Mr. O'Neill. Mx. Chalyman, it is a pleasure to be here.
I must: say I agppreciate wary much your being understanding
about the time situation today. I appreciate that very much,

Yith your permission I would like to put my shori state-
;n&nt in the record and use the‘ti@a for summary to do one
thiné, and that is to read briefly what I considex to be the
key sentencees from the Fresident's letter to you and your
colleagues cn the other side indicating his position on the
legislation you have befoxe you.
If T may I will guote.

The President said, "I do not beliers that we need yet
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“ ancther FedeLaL bureaucracy in Washington, with its attendant

“'costc of 60 million dollavs for the first three years. and
hundreds of additional Fedexal employees, in ordexr to achieve
better consume:: vepresentation and propectiun'in Government..
At a time when we are trying to cut down on both the size and
the cost of Governnent, it would be wunsound te add another
layer of bureaucracy instead of improving the undexlying
structure.

"It is my conviction that the best way to protect the
consumar is to improve the existing institutions of Government,

not to add nore Government."

-

I think those worxds sum up in & very good way the position
|thich the President has taken on this bill and the position of

the Administration on this bill. Y /M@*%
po U

d :ZZ" s ' questiog(é;-whether we can appropriately

lmodify the provisions of $. 200 ox whether we can appropriztely
modify the provxsions of H.R. 7575, but it is, ;!-Iﬁé a
straxght forwazd issue as to whether or not we can make the
institutions of Government. which have already been establiched
do the job which we believe by the Congress and the executive
branch and the people of the country expact them to perfora.

We believe that there are sufficient. legislative
authorities, ;;¥éta that therxe are mandates from the Congress,

j|that the existing institutions of Government take into account

the public interesg;-the consumer interest, and it is our job
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‘to make-th0$e institutions do their jobs in a way which would
be a credit to the people who pay their way. !

Mr. Brooks. Mr. O'Neill, I want t6 thank you for a fine
statement and sior your usual forthright and candid comments
on legislation upen which we ask you to cestify.

I want to say as an cbservation tha: I think you will
find almost all the members of Congress share the hope that
the existing Government operations of Goverrment agencies can
do their job better, more efficlently, wore effectively, at
less cost to thé Government, with more service to its people.
I share that feeling. This Committee has‘work8§ on that
premise for 20 years to my certain knowledge.

I woulc he very pleased if I felt that one or all of our
Govarnment ager.cies could be so attuwed o public responsi~
bility and consumer requirements that they could use the
existing organizations.

On papet it looks as though you already have offices and

'already have overhead and it sounds as though it would make

sense to have each of these agencies wake up every morning and

say, "My God, in addition to looking after the railroads I will

look after consumers today. In addition I will look after the
interstate gésAlines and pipelines and I will also think about
consumers. In addition to airlines regulation we will think
about passengers."

Then with regard to the SEC they sar, "In addition to
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problems. in New York we will think about consumers.”

I don't believe in reality that that can be dcne. This
is my convicticn.

* X would just say that it is hard to give confidence to tha
American consurer that one of the existing agencies is now
going to wake vp, like a gobﬂe in a newworid, and say, "My
God, they have consumers in this country. Icok at them out
there, all over us.” I just don't believe we ¢an =ell that
bill of goods to consumerxs.

What we need is not just the mechanlzatlan for giving them.
a volce in industry, with industry, and in Covernment deci-
sions that are going to have to do with consumer opportunities
to buy reasonakle goods.

You not only have to give fhem the ﬁechanigation for that
voice. We have to give them addiéiqdal confidence that American
business is giving them a good £air deal for 'what they pay
. P
for.

I will give you a current example. You know that 1f you
buy an electrical appliance which costs under 25 dollars arnd
it does not work you micght as well throw it aay. It is
almost impossikle to get it repaired unless your brother-in-
law is a pretty good electrician, as mine is.

I have a nower and it is on tho blink. I sent it back
to the m&n to repaixr it because I cannot work on a gasoline-

powered lawnmower.
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The man indlcated it might be that the valves have to be
ground and that the gasket is bad.

1t had besn running #ine up until the time he saw it.

T told hin, "Pon't fix a thing until you tell me what it
costs because the odds are that it will cos: me" w- wa will
know befoxe the hearing is 6ver e BPE will probably cost 75
dollars to 100 for the repaira." he mowrey, brand-new, cost
only 18% dollars.

Therefore, they are making uneconomic the repair of
comrodities which cost up to 150 dollars. - This is the kind of
deal I think we can improve upon,

There are others. I am not trying o ke unreasonable
about it. I don't hit too many rocks with that mower.

That is the problem. People need confidence. I would
not say, Mr. 0'Neill, that we have distrust in our manu-
facturers. I like them. We buy ffom them. we trust them.

Qur friends work for them. |

. However, I think the American public is entitled to an
opportunity to participate -~ not to run the companies and

+fnot to run the 3Zovernment except through elected reprgsentativas
But I think we swe them at least a voice, just one voiée tha£
miﬁht point out their problems as all these other agencies

.i%ik after the manufacturers. They have lawyers, lobbyists,

representatives, agents, and they cowe themselves and represent

themselves. However, the iverage cousumer just does not have
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ﬁhat.oppprtunity.

Mr. Erlenborn. Would the gentleman yield?

Mr. Brooks. I will be pleased to yield to ny distinguiahec
and able friend. I raegret that thz witness bhefore last did
not have more time to visit with you.

Mr. Exlenborn. I thank the gentieman for yielding.
I nmake the observatlon it is an appealing ar jument you made.

I don't think the Consumer Protection Agency, even as con-

" ceived by the gentleman from Texas, will be involved in the

design and manufacturer of toasters or lawvnmowers.

Mr. Brooks. No, I don‘t think they will ﬁesign them,
but they might point out that evexry tdme you buy one, if yon
buy the X, ¥, Z toaster and the average lifz is three week:s,
I think people will get that woid. You can put that word out .
pretty fast that X, ¥, 2 toasters dre dogs and people will
quit buying them. Then we will buy A, €, C toasters and they
last sbout a year and a half.

Mr. Erlenborn. I undarstood we were going to prohibit
the Goverment stamp of approval. Are you suggesting W& will
have a Government stamp of disapproval?

Myr. Brocks. MNo, I just want a little sugshine. We are
all for sunshine now.

Mr. O'Neill, I enjoyed having you. I don't want to burden
you with all this but that 1s the gist of what I had to say

about this bill.
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_Does OMB really believe that the Federzl agency is

- adequate to protect consuners now?

Mr. O'Neill. I think we are making prcgress. I think
we are on the verge of making a significant leap forward.
Ag Iptuought about thie isgsue, it ﬁaemﬂjéo me that the
[

reality of where we are is a vreflection withinAx@gulatoriea

1

and other executive Lraach agencies of what it was W%‘ﬁ#ﬁéiémxf

-

T as citizens, as exacutive branch pecple, as members of
.

ConqreeaA Fy exparience in governmant has been that agencies

live up to what it is we expect them to do.

I think the proof of the pudding in thzXis <

]
obserﬁ&.wzat has taken place in the last six months or #o as

- the President has made this a public issne,\as many of you

have nade the actions of the regulatorv agencles a public
issue.

It seems to me if you look at the statements of the mémw
bers of the requlatory bodies, if you listen to what people
are saying, if you look at the editorials which our nzwspapers
and our other media publisﬁf.it is fairly clear that the
people are saying they are not going to ptand for government
that does not pay attention toqwé'tha people.

I think that message will be reflected very clearly in the
actions of regulatory agencieg, especially w;th a concerted

push from the executive branch;and—tnsrxnnﬁﬁar-ai the President

inglsting that every executive brench agency e —teaeriieioii.
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 vma-==§$?=nsr is going to prepare a specific agtion plan with
apécific action steps to see that the publi: and the consweex
interest is represented in the cases where actions ara taken
in the name of“wé“the people.

HMr. Brooks. I understand that statement. However, has
OME taoken step3 to assure thot thosa Pederal agencles will
strengthen fheir consuwer practices?

Mz. O'Neill. Mr. Chairman, the lead in develaping thuse
action plans has been given to Virginia Knaver,the Prosident's

iyﬁpwt’ ‘ ’
SpeCial;SsauagL for Consumer Affairs. We g hgve been
working with Virginia and with fhe other peouple &::ZAJ the
executive branch to get this executive action plan in place
and get it operating.

I have with me a 1is£ of assignments wiieh have bheen madef-
kick=off séesions which ére to be held between Virginia Knouer
and each of the cabinet and agency heads, with specific steps_‘.
they are to take.

Mr. Brcoksi. How many has she talked to already? : ol

10 through todecy. . :
Mx. Brooks. We will put that into the record if you wish.;
In the fiscal 1976 budget now rending how much loney has_*f
OMB épproved fexr inclusion in the Federal agency budgets to
“increase consumer proteciion?

I say I assume your budgets previounly were not flabby and

L "*A_\
FOR

N

M. O'Neill. My list indicates She should have talked to |

(L

Qs

o

Z (/
~ E <

=
~
Vs

L



10
11
i2
13
14
15

16

18
i
20
21
22
23
28

)

fithat somepody wza doing something for each dellar.
Yy g : 2

If we ars to take on additionel regponsibility called
conswner protection, we found all those poopla out there one.
morning when we woke up, what isoney and what znergy and what
people will we assign to look after them as yon gay you will do?

'Mr; O'Neill. Me¢. Chairmen, as I am sure you and the mem- :

bers ox the Compittee know, theve is rot an osject classifica~ °

g

tion in the traditional budget documents for so~called consuner

[
representation. I think there is a good yeason for that.

Mry. Brooxs. You think what? 5

¥

Mir. O'Nelll. Thewre la a very geod rcasoa for that. Let's

take a specific agency as a case in point.

Let's” take the Pood and Drug Adwminilstration. It has a 5

»udget this year of over 200 million dollars. Its'responsibili&f'

o

.
L}

reople ig <o protect the public interest and to protact the- con-

oA "

notAun the executive branch but to the Congreis and to the

15

sumer interest. Nt
] . . B

I think la=weiey one eowdd say that the dollars provided
to tZ%ée regulatory agencies and to many of the executive branch
agencies are for nothing more than public representation, re-
presentation of the public interest and the consumer interest.
f While it is fair to say there is not an object, classlfica-

% 3

tion in a nice little schecule which zaid this specific mmount

mlm for consumer representation I submit to you tha%)properly

Jviewedyone could make a case thers are hundreds of millions of
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lelars recommendad by the President and provided by the Con~
gresé to insure that the public interest is served.

My. Brooks. But not earmarked zs such for consumer pro-
tection.

Mr. O'Neill. %o the extent we provicde 200 milliorn dollars
for the Food and Drugy Rdministration I would say that is an

indication of earnest on the part of the execative branch and

the Congress that -4 %, wve intend to protect the consumexr

Hintervent in the use of drugs.

Mr. Brooks. How much was that?

My. O'Nelll. One hundred eighty to 18% million dollars,
so it is up 15 to 20 million dollars.

My. Brooks. That increase is not earmarked for consumer
protaction but earmarked for inc#eases in salary, increases
in travel, and for other justified expenses which you have
already approved or you would not come down here and ask for
it.

Mr. O'Neill. There is a real increase aside from the
change in the cost of living in the FDA bidget. I think it is
fair to say that all of those dollars are there because of laws
passed by the Congress which indicate it is our intent, as a
people,’ to protect the consumer interest in the use of drugs
and in the use of foods.

Mr. Rosenthal. I think the point that should be restated

is that what we are talking sbout here is not perceived by you
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vet. _Thig ig a functional change in government because of
the inadequacy ¢f the present arrangement and struclture.
Regardless of how much additional money you put into this,
you are putting good money after bad monev urder this :
functional arrargement:.
What this Committee is trying to do with the enactment of
this legiglation is to undexstand that organization makes

policy, and the present organization is inade¢quate and in-

reffectiva. That is what we ave trying to do.

W= appreciate the effort you have made. We appreciate
the large numﬁars of peoople you have given Mrs. Knaver's office
to ﬁake this inquiry and the effort yvou put forth. We
appreciate that and it is to be commanded.

Howevey, it deces not go ﬁo‘the core of the problem. It
is a philosophical appreciation of the functional inadecuacy
of the present consvmer representation systemn.

Frankly, fiom whexe I sit, nothing mare‘needs to be said.

Mr. O'Neilli. Mr. Resenthal, if I may respond to that.

It seems to me rom an oxganization and management point of
view that the idea of a Contumer Protection Agency really sug-
gests that ratherx tnan correcting the defects we see in the
current system we qill dodge . the problem by creating a new
organization.

It seems to me, at least as an individual consumei and as

an individual citizen, that I have a representative to work with

r”“:‘ N
FOR N
P

J' ),,/‘2. L




10

11

12

13

14

18

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

i . |
me and rapreseni: my interest with all of the departoents and

‘agencies of Governmeni:, I have a chanc:a to elect him eve:yrz:JDV

yearg,
'h Mr. Rosenthial. Who is that?
Mr. O'Neil... My repre&ehtative Erom wy District.
Ii Mr. Rosenthal. Vou cannot be seriows honestly. I have ‘{'
‘heard this rhetoric for 10 or 12 yeaxs. ;%
I know a man of your intellectual capacity cannot be
‘serinus in that. When you suggest to this Committes wa ave "
spending 200 million dollars for the Food and Drug Administras= |

H“tion, do you know how much the drug companies spend orn marke t-
ing and prcmot%nnnl activitiegs and and what percentage ofltkat'g
ig -~ : %
%r. O'Neill). I kpow it is a big;number.

- Mr. Rosenttal. Po you want to take an outside willid and

improbable guess?
Mr. Broecks. Go ahead.
Myr. O'Neill. I am sure it is a big number, but T think %

frankly it is beside the voint. I don't see what bearing it

. -

pNLL

has on the issue at all. ,ﬂ%" 2_
A what difference does 1t make ~- - {;\ ;;
i Mr. Rosentlral.- You are looking for roses because th;\Peedé;*
Jand Drug Adminictration is up to 200 million dollars. |
ﬂ Myr. O'Neill. I am nof: looking for roses. I was 2sked a
queation and I indicated conceptually that: I think certainly it
l
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is the intent' of Congress,” I think it ig, tﬁat_the Tocd and
Drué raministraiion represents the interest of the people of
the United Szat:zs, not of some specific interest grovp,; not of
any specific interest group.

; y ; (
Yhat 18 beilng quo
' A

Protectinn Agenzy is that we the Congies:. ani we tha executive
branch car make a crveature of vur cwn waking do the public
business.

My. Rosezntaal. Have you avor bean tb a regulatoy
hearing? Have you yvourself personally ever peen to a reguin—
torv hearing?

Mr. O'Neill. Yes, but not recently.

Mr. Rosenthal. What was the last time?

Mr. O'Nzaill. "wo or three yaars aqgo.

Mr. Rosanthal. Have vou seen the format of the room that
the commission uses, the Federal Trade Commission and the
Federal Power Commiﬂsioﬁ?

Mr. O'Neill. VYes.

Mr. Rosenthal. They sit like judges. People &eekiﬁg the
rate increase are usually well reprasentaed by léwyers,
economi.sts, and so forth.

How is the consuwmer's point of view represented at that
heafing? By whom is it represented?
| . Mr. O'Weill. I think as a yeneral proposition under past

practice it has not been well reprecented. However, that does

ted with the idea we st heve & Con:uney
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ﬂot suggest to ne that rather than deal with that issue and
}correct the deficiency we see in creatures we have made that we
create another zgency as a axop to tha people wa are all trying
to halp.

: Mr. Resenthal. Would you please for the sake of this
iﬁquiry eliminate the rhetorié, pleave? \Vle have in thase quasi-
judicial hearings one empiy chair. One chair is filled by thre
proponerts of the rate increase, the CAL airline cextificatizn,
énd 30 on.

The other chair representing the consumer interast is enpty|

¥ou cannot ask the judges to jump off the bench as I am
supposed to now and start advocating one of the parties to the
procaeding.

My, O'Neill. Would yvou yleld?

Mr. Roseathal. No. It is unethical to do that. It is an
abguxdity.

To appoint a consumer advocate within the agency you have
an in~house built~in conflict of interest.

I am astounded that vyou do not understand, oxr I perceive»
| you do not underﬁtahd, the nature of the organizational change
we avre trying to make.

We arxe trying fox 15 to 20 million dollars a year make
the hundreds of millions of dollarz a year gspent for regulatory
agencles work. We are txving to get a geometrie progression of

leverage on the situation
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T don't know whether or not it will work but it is the
best proposal I have seen in the 14 years I rave been in Con-
gress.

For a man of ycur capacity to come here and deliver to hs
the kind of xhetoric we havg heard today -~ larger governmen:,
another agency, billicns of dollars, cause irflation = we can

find anybody to do that out in the street and not a high level

| Deputy Director of OMB. You must have a betier presentation

—than the one you have made today.

Me. O'Nell... Mr. Congresasman, I would csay the crux of
my argurent is this, ﬁnd it 18 a vory key question of govexr.-
ment =~ are we qoing to make the creatures and agencles that
we have ¢togethes created do the publle business or are we going
to fool the people ky creating something elsé that looks as
though it solves the problem and :ell that little agency, "I'ix

up hundreds of nillions or billlions of dollars worth of

problems." It s beyond me why the Congrzss does not insist,
as the Presiden® says he will insist with tﬁe agencies that he
has cﬁntrol ove::;, that they do the public business and not some
gpecial interes: group's interest.

‘ Mr. Erlenborn. Would the gentleman yield?

1 Myr. Rogsenthal:; If you feel like.

Mr. Erlenborn. The gentleman said there was an empty
Uchair in the regqulatoxy hearings. Why not two or three? Who

| 15 there speaking for the taxpayer?
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, Who'is there spesking for the enviroumer+italiste? I am
sure if we turned our attention to it we carn think of several
‘other interests not represenied.

The gentlenan seewms to think in all these hearings you
have big businers repregeanted in cne chnif ard there is one
other chalyr empty. You show é cervain anount of mycpis in boing
able to see only that far.

Mr. Rosenthal. Wihat we are dealing with, 1f the chair will
ﬁermit, what-we are dealing with essentially is in a techno-
‘1ogi¢a1 developing society where you have 210 million Mmericans.
We are interested esseﬁtially in interstaté COMIMBLCB .

T he Congress in its wisdom saw #it to establish & numbex

of recqulatory agencies to generally represent the public
interesit and to specifically reprecent the consumer interast b
Food and Drug Administraticn in terms cf economic and health and
safety, Fedaral Power Commission, Federal Trade Commission, ¢AB,
Securities and Exchange Commission, and sc on.

The taxpayers are loosely represantec there but spaglfically
those agencies have the mission of representing consunyars.

All thesa agencies started @ut accepting that with the
perspicacity and will. l «

Over the years we have found out that the qnérgxoup they
were presumably going to represent wés inadequately represented.

I am not saying anybody intended it that way. I =m not

suggesting there are any ghosts in the clcset. I am saying it
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ié a functional system we creat@d‘which is inadeqnate.

‘If you ask at a CAB hearing wheathex i:he consumer's point
of view is represented the answer is no becavse it is a contoest
between competirg airlines.

Iz the consumer's point of view represented ad the Federzal
Power Commissior? The anawar is no because it is a conteat
between glants kuilding transmission lires betwaeen Cklahoma and
the EastCoast scmewhere.

The point cf view is that at themairmgu]atofy rate hearings
there is no consumer representative.

. In the Digtrict of Columbia General Services Administra-
tion, the landlcrd for the Government, is a subscribexr for
electriclty fron Pepco, has four lawyers doing tﬁe very thing
we are talking sbout. They have a consumear advocate in GSA o
represent the interests of the.Feder&l Covernment before the
Pﬁblic Service Commission in the District of Coluwmbia. Never-
thélass, they havé already decided what we are trying to £ind
out hy way of legisliation.

All we are suggesting is that in the billions and hundreds
of billions of dollars this Govermment spends each year, wa
spend‘zo million dollars a year to hopefully represent: the
iQterests of consumers so that the consweer's voice cun be heard
before regulatory agencies. That is all. £
These agencies are quasi-judiciél. We are suggesting that

the empty chair purpoitedly repreéenting thé consdnax's interest
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be filled by a lnowledgeabhle gource which has the voice and

effect of the Poderal Covarnment.

It seems to wme the most elementary equagion evex uvolvv@
from this City of Washiagton.

Then you cume»in here énd think you are deing the job aand
talking to us in rhetoric. ‘

I probably sald more than my share.

Mr. Brooks. Let ne just gay this: Jon't you alse mean
that the regulalory agencies aftex tihat r2prosentation of tle
consumaeys will #+ill have the authority to muke the deaisions.
they are responuihle for?

Mr. Rosenthal. Abgolutely. Why did sone of these agencies
do thig? Some became axbiters of competiang industries.

Some hecame the center of gravity for Washington lobbyists.

We tried to create an agency which has no decision-making
power at all, the right of advocacy.

If the Food and Drug Administration Jdoes not agree with
ﬁhe censumer advocate they can rule against him. If he does
not agree they will take an appeal to the court.

What's moye judicial than that? #hat is more proper than
that?

That is the point of the whole story ;~ a ncﬁ~regulatoxy
agency so that the infestation of lobbyists will not occur.

This agency will produce the biggast bank for the buck we

ever got in VWashington.




16
17
18
‘19

20

" of *what you ar: saying is that there is no redemption fcr the

- line.

Mr. O'Nelitl. It seems to we that the loglcal conclus:ion

L Ak 1i penrt

regulatory agenciegﬂwmpalthough we created “hem M thz public

[V

interes;,wehfound

7 T m;eﬁthey are puwd
the creatures of the speclal interest giroups and ve recognize
that for what Lt 1ls and we w}ll try to create a countar foice,
1} ceems to melas a prilvate citizeg that 1s untenable because
that is not what the law says those agencles are supposed 6o
be doing.

Mr. Rosenchal. I presume you are not i lawyer.

Me. O'Neill. I am not.

Mr. Rosenthal. Perhaps that 1s the difference in cur
uncerstanding and our abllity to see the problem.

I just think that the baslec Anglo-Saxon system of juszice
in a quasi-judlcial hearlng suggests both sides should ke

represented. [t just comes down to that. 'That 1s the bottom

Mr. Brooks. Hr. O'Nelll, nobody says all regulafory
agenclies are bad. They are not. They are not representing
Just the rallrosads or the power companiles. or what have you,
nor are they rapresenting just the big oill companles. They are

theoretically representing consumers, Just as you think.

What I am saylng is that this kind of an agency will zive
them the information they need. It will péint that up for them

They have had a slipght tendency over the years to neglect




10

il

12

13

14

16

17

18

19

29

21

22

25

i

I

thogse people. This doz@s not mean they will be totally non-

receptive to cansunsr interests.

The very ccncept of fzhe consumer agency means that the

| agency will represent a positlon, a consuner position, a con-

sumex intereaﬁ, and»that.the regulatery aqency, bacuune i1 has
synpathy with it, when it is pointed oui. to them will take
action that will be responsivae to it

If the c¢onsumer agency were the only grcup that had an

Anterast in conzumers the regulatory agencies would do nothing.

Vowevar, the corcept of this whole legisliaticn is that somebody

will ha in thexe and will tall the regnlatory agencies what the
problems ave with the people buying all thls stuff, and they
will then take eppropriate action ea they ses fit_under their
jJurisdiction.

It does not mean they arec not sensitive or have some
slight feeling for conﬁumers; After all, their wives Qo to the
storaes, too.

Mr, Horton?

Mr. Horton.' Hr. O'Neill, I know you are very familiar
with this lecislation. I woﬁld like to ask you whéthe; it is

your understznding that this is not a regalatory agency and

s

perhaps you c¢an confixm that this is not a regulatoryiageggf?d?z

but‘that it is, pure and simple, an advocacy agencf?- s fi

.\ s

Mr. O'Neill. VYes, sir. I think in the design of thgx\__d,/

| bill that you put together that it is clear it is vour intent

N

A
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if nci be a regulatory agency. .

.Mr. Horton. 1In the statemen: of the President which'you
read you indicatazd that it would be ﬁnscund t» add ancother
layer of bureasucracy.

I am at somz loss to understand how this can be called
another layer of bureaucracy because it is not regulatozy.
It-is an advocat: to appear before differcnt agencies. I do
not cec it interdering by way of a bureaucracy. I see it
Eppearing before a regulatory agency but I do not see it as
another layex of bureaucrecy.

Perhaps it is a matter of semantics and perhaps it is not,
but perhaps you :an explain what is understood by that language
in that part of :he statewent.

Mr, O'Neill, I think ' e, it 13 another layer of
bureaucracy in the sense, as yon indiuatm, that it reprasents

several hundred additional peopl £4}L4¥#ﬁ
- )

with the taxpaye:s' monexnén the deliberations of. the day~to-

day work of Government. In that way it represents another
level of bureauc:racy.
Mr. Horton. You wmean that becavse it is an agency it is
therefore anothe:: level of bureéucracy?
Mr. O'Neill. In a way it is another hurdle.
J Lot

If you do not mindiaigression, it seems ¢

";” what we e doing in Washiagton for the last 15

VEAYS lesreeiitesiiee , Ve 12ve been £ollcving Congressman
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Roéaﬁthal's approach, turning ourselves iato a socliety which
‘Bpends atih%f onr time in hearing processes, before the couvits,
-F;lru ﬁ’if virtua..ly impossz‘.blé to do anyihiang ) anynore wiithout
months and years and sometimes it seems to be eons of discus-
sions and deliberations. In that way I think the ACP represents
another xsal layex of buraaugracy.

Il Mr. Horton. You made a statement vhere you indicated that
the President was going to impese this concept of having the

Federal agencies be more recponsive to the interests of con-

sumers, you taid, to every emecutive branch ageacy over which he

has control.
Hr Is it not a fact that most of these regulatory agencies
are independent agencics?

Mr. O'Neill. The President has taolien steps in that

ﬁrea thaf you, may not be aware of.

‘Last Friday he wet with '}/Q%i--partiuan leadership and he
asked thés leadership to appqint 10 members frbm each body to
meet with him on the 25th day of June with the regulatoxy
ﬁembers to try té urge on them the sawme voluntary action pro-
cess that he has proposed for the agencies which fall directly
under his control.

He recognines;he does not have the same relationship to the
regulatories that he does w othexr =xecutive branch agencies,
'so he has askad, and Y think your leaders have agread, to a

.cooperative process. of aittiﬁg down with *“he requlatory agencies
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%ﬁd @alking to thew in the same way he lag talkéd with his oun
‘executive branch wes departzméntA agqancy l'eads/ indicat:ing i;o them
he is conscious of and eware of a need ifor Ffair, gtraichi for-
wérd representation of cansumér and public interest in the
‘day—-i;o-w:iay‘ busginess of Govexnmont, And Fe is going 1o (o every-
thing he can in his power to det the régulatoxies, viitk the
coopexation and conﬁent of the Congress, to approach the
problen in the same way, taking aggressive action steps‘tc 32e
#éhat we make good on his pronmise that CGewvermmen: is going to
pexform.

My. Horton., What you art saving i3 that the Prasident

has Ilndicated this program and policy will be carried cut

in the executive agencies but the avea in which the ACE would

fibe involved, nawely the regulatory agencies, he acknowliedges

that he has no contxol ovaer them and he is making efforts to
try to get them to adhere to his thought. In other words, he

does not have direct control over them so that whole arvea of

|l regulatory agencies is left out of his progxam.

Mr. O'Neill.” Perhaps I do not understand the full power
and sweep of H.k. 7575.

Were you suggesting that the only zgencies’ that would be
under the purview of this bill are regulatory agencies?
“ Mr. Horton. No. If 7 left that imprassion I do not mean

to because that is not so. However, this hill doea apply to

all of the regulatory agencies. That is vherc most of the

I ,. '
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action will take place. That is where most of the difficulties

have taken place in the past.

The point is that the Pregldent doos not have con‘:rol over

the regulatory wagencies. That is correct.

Mr., O'Neill. Would the Congressman propose that all
except the regulatory agenclies be .excmpted from the provisicas
of the bill? |

Mr. Horton. ©No, but vou did not ansuer my question,

Mr. O'Neill. Let me answez your Jquestica directly. The

Presidant cleaxrly does not have the same kind of power over the

Nregulatgxy agenc¢ies he does have over those more tradiit:ional

executive branch departments and agencies,
The President has indicated he will do everything in his
power tﬂéglig=;;n to siee that the public interest and the

consumer interest are fairly and adeqgnately énd clearly repre-

sented in the day-to-day business of those departments and ~q,}

o
agencies. »{g

\"i)
In additior, as I have indicated, he has called for a \_

cooperative effcrt with the Congress Lo work on the regulatory

agencies to get'them to move voluntarily :.n the same directlon

of better representation.
o
He has alsc called for regulatory reform commiesion. He
did that last October and as yet we have seen no astion on that.

He very much would like to have that because he thinks it sets

in motilon a good process. We have not gotten that out of

PR

;\'\
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Cong;ess yet.
- ' Mr. Horton. I irntroduced a bili at the raguest of the
Administration. This year I did not évcn get: a reguest to
introduce the bill.

I stand reudy to. As a matter of fa~t, I have indicated
personally tolthe President and I have indicated publizly end
I did this morn:ng, when I gave my opening statemeat, when you
were not preseni: so yon could not know exactly what I said, but
I indisated that: 1 thought it was iwportant that we have reform
of the'regulntory agencies.

I also indi.cated, and I want to indizate again, that that
is an important step forward. However, I do not think that
the ACP iz an alternative to that. I thiak it is a sudsplement
to that.

As the geni:leman from Mew York, Mx. Rosenthal, has alrcady
indicated, thesa agencles, these independant agencies, |
especially the regulatory agencies, primarily are quasi-
judicial., They should, at least, have all views presented.

The consumer is a broad masg of people who arxe not well defined,‘
are not ﬁnified.
! :

I have heard it said that the environmentalists should have
somebody there ané_some cother group should have soneone there,
et cetera. Howzaver, I think the consuﬁer interest czn encom—~
pass all of those views.

The point is tha®: consumers are taxpaycrs. TYhey are
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envifonmdntalists, small businessmen, faswevs, all these people.

The languace that we have in here defining the consumery
and consuner interest can inelude those tvpes of interests in
my opinion.

It is also my vicw that it is very iiwortant to have that
1‘voicc heard befoxe the various agencles that axe involved.

Take the FLA. You were talking ¢poug thewm. How nany néw
people will théy put cn as a reﬁulL of thle new policy to repre-
sent the consumen? |

My. O'Neill. As I indicated to Mr. Rosenthal, it scems
to me that the kound duty of all of the puople, however many
they may be who work for the FDA, hgve a swoxrn responsibiiity
to carry out the law. BAs I understand the law, the FDR is
charged by the Congress with overseeing and being responsible

for protecting the public health and'safety over matters they

have responsibility for. That seems very-cleaﬁ to me.

Every individual in that agency has the responsibility you
are calling for.

Mr. Horton.. Would you explain the pirocess whefeby wve cet
things like these interlock seatbelts and that sort of thing?

Mr. O'Neill. I am not familiar with-the process involving
that particular item.

I think it is fair to say that in retrogpect we have seen
case3 where regulatory agencies have taken positions that look

foolish -~ in rotrospect. Let me hasten to add that I am not
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sure. there is any organizational-bureaucratic dévice krown to
the wind of man that can stop things that appsar to be stupii
on their face aftex we have been some distancz down the road
and can look dack on it and ses it just did not make sease.
Frankly I don't think ACP, CPA or &nything else in the
world will stop human folly, 0 T donft think we will,stop
safety belt ianterlocks and all that. We vill have those thiangs
foisted off on vs and what secred to be a good idea will prave
;n practice to be- a very bad idea.
Mr. Horton. Do you have any feel for tha amount cof
money spent by industry lobbyists before the DA, for exampla2?
M. O0'Neill. Which lcbby?
Mr. Horton. FDA, industry lobby.
Mr. O'Neill. I have no idea. However, it seems to me, as
I said to Mr. Rogenthal, it is not a key cuecstion. The key
question is whether people in that agency understand the 3
charge which has been placed on them by the Congress and by the; \
5

s |

w

President %fo protect the public interest, to protect the con-
sumer interest.

If we cannot count on those paoplg)in gaod fait&ito repre-
sent the consumer and the people, then what w2 have admitted
in effect is that wé have created governm@htal entities that
are beyond thz control of the Congress and the exesutive branch:

and it just sesems to mz we cannot come to that position.

My, Horton. I have no further questions.
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. Mr. Brooks. Mr. Erlenborn?

Mr. Erlenborn. “hank you, Mr. Chairuan.
Let me thank you for your testimony, Mr. O'Neill, which
originally was very brief and very much to the point. I think

you were invited here ag a witness. You have done well.
H&wever. you have alsobeen the subject of some lectures.
I don't know that you anticipated that when you came.
My recollection is that in the past hearings on this sib-
ject we have sonetimes had statements from executive agencies

and departments and independent agencies., I am not certain that

that process has been gone through in the House hearings this

year.

\re you aware of any requests by ﬁhis Committeé for state~
ments from the various departments and agencies which have beea
affected?

Mr. O'Neil... No, sir, I am not.

Mr. Erlenborn. I guess the Chairman can tell us whether
they have bheen asked ifor.

I have been.concerned that the very people who would be
most affected, the reyulatory agencies, the departments, whether
it be the Depariment of Justice which has sonebody from ACP
looking over their ‘shoulder when they institute an anti-trust

action, or some indepandent regulatory agency, they have not

really been asked for an expression as to how thig would affect

‘themn. o TORGN

N
S i)
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e
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|

It

—

. ‘Becmuse 0f wy concera I inquired of the Administration

advised they would be.

Are'yoﬁ aware of this?

My, O'Nelll. VYeg, sir. I kioow for & fact that the
President has indicated to thé cabinet nenbers and agency heads
that he would like wezy mnmh‘for thew te presant their impact
viewss on this particular legislation.

Mr. Exlenborn. I think thig is cxtromely important.

It is an elemsnt which is not in the existing record. I
think the record we make here is important because we have a
new Congress. Wz have a bill similar but not identical. We
have more than a dozen new members of this Committee alone
as well as almost 100 new members of the Housea.

Just this afternosn I furnished 'a letter to the Chairman
of our Committee signed by elght menbers ¢f tae Government

Operations Commit:tee asking that he extend th2 hearings and

] Sy |

. FORLs

» ™ j‘\‘
invite representatives of the departments and agencies whiol <\
would be affected to tastify. {f {i;

N ot

I am giad to have you confirm the fact that the Presiden€m
has asked them to make themselves avallable. I hope the Chair-
man will accedé to our request.

Mr. Brooks. Friday morning we will expect them all. You
can write eight differant statements.

I just got that letter at four o'clock from my distinguished
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ffthink it has nct even keen introduced two wesks yet, or close
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e

and able friend, Mr. Erlenborn.

At 4:55 I signed eight letters to the Secretaries of

ture, Communicetions, Power Commizsion, 9rade Commission, and

ICC. We invited ther foxr Friday. We nay gc into Saturday

. —

morning.
Mr. Exlenborn. I thank you. %That is certainly prompt
action.

e

Of course, thalt ssems to be the rule on this bill. I

to it. We may even get it on the Ploor hefore =--

Mr. Horton. I will not be he:re Saturday morning. I 'have
to be in my Distrxict. However, I will be here Monday.

Mr. Fuqua: We have had before ug the Consumer Affairs ;
Advisor, Mrs. Knauer. I don't know whether or not she has been
invited. I don't know who has been invited. It has been
difficult to find out who has been invitcd to testify.

7 Where is she now? Is she still working for the Government?;
I saw her on television the other day.

Mr. O'Neill. VYes, sir.

Mr. Fuqua. She is supporting this position? What is her
position? She supported creation of an agency before. I wonderx |
about her position now, or is iﬁ somewhat precarious?

Mr. O'N2ill. I don't think it is at. all. She has

discussed this with the President. Uhen the President v,f“ <\
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+ bude

ndicated to the cabinet mawers and agunsy Lizads that he

wanted an acticon plan, that he wanted o see the executive
branch make progrsss in representing the consamer and public

interest., Virginia Knauer mide s presentation,

Por the lLast month or six weelzs she has beern working vecy

hard to Ffollow through on che directive giver by the Preside kt.

Mr. Fugue. 1L thio bill goes to che Prosident's desk

elther as introduced in tbe Uouse or 3. 200, would you recomnend

g li that the President veto ig?
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Mr. O'Neill. I would like to xeserve judguant and see
what is produced by Congreus.

HMr. Fuqua. Either this bill in ite presunt form or 5. 200
in its pxresent form as passed by the Serate.

Mr. O'Neill. As to my own personal reccumendation, yas,

I think I wouid recommend a veto. I hope I would be able to

ghow by the time that event wight occu: that che executive

branch has made real and substantial progress in getting the

executive branch agencies to do that which I believe the Congresd

all along has inteénded they do, and that is to rvepresent the
consumer and public intexest.
Mr. Fuqua. Thank you, Mr. Chairnan.
Mr. Brooks. I-want to'thank you very mﬁv , Mr. O'Neill,
We enjoyed it.
' The hearing will be continued at two o'clock tomorrow, same

place.






